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From: Doug Marshall <_>

Sent: Monday, January 5, 2026 11:47 PM
To: TPB Submission/PLAND <tpbsubmission@pland.gov.hk>

Subject: Re: #RH|EHE54R5E A/SK-TMT/84
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File Reference: A/SK-TMT/84A

Formal Complaint and Application for Reconsideration Regarding Inconsistent Approval Criteria for
Conversion of Green Belt to Recreational Use (Golf Putting Range)

To the Head of the Relevant Planning Authority,
Planning Department,
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

I am writing to formally challenge the systematic bias and inconsistencies in your department’s approval
criteria, supported by the following irrefutable facts:

I. Contradictions and Double Standards in Approval of Similar Cases: Targeted Rejection of Our Project

The Town Planning Board (TPB) has approved numerous “green belt to recreational use” projects in the
past, all involving large-scale excavation, permanent structures, and many located in suburban residential
areas:

- Kwai Chung Park (Approved 2025): 3.02 hectares of green belt developed with viewing platforms, slides,
and other facilities, with excavation exceeding 2 metres in depth.

- Ngau Chi Wan Park (Approved 2009): 4 hectares of landfill converted into an archery range and fitness
corner, with 80% of the site subject to excavation.

- Jordan Valley Remote Control Car Track (Approved 2010): Permanent race track and spectator stands
constructed, altering the original terrain.

In stark contrast, our proposed project at Sai Kung DD216 involves only elevated container reception
facilities, an open-air car park, and a low-intensity putting range, with excavation depth of less than 1
metre—fully complying with the “Ordinarily Permitted” category under Planning Guideline 10.

The claim that our project “lacks an Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) report or other relevant
documents” is completely false. Over the years, multiple farmers and applicants for the same DD216 site
have submitted a full set of professional documents, including EIA reports, road planning reports, noise
impact assessments, and soil and water conservation plans. All records are readily accessible in your internal
system. However, our applications have repeatedly been unreasonably blocked at the final approval stage by
the Watershed Management Authority, citing unwritten rules with no legal basis.

Most outrageously, our project is a charitable training facility initiated by a group of professional golf
coaches. Golf putting is a static sport with no noise or intensive excavation, fully aligning with the Chief
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Executive’s initiative to promote sports locally and globally, while boosting local economic activity in Sai
Kung. The project has received unanimous support from the Sai Kung Heung Yee Kuk and the local District
Councillor.

We are not a force seeking to undermine the Hong Kong Government; instead, we are committed to
promoting public welfare, creating employment opportunities for international coaches (to prevent them
from losing their livelihoods due to lack of training venues), and establishing Hong Kong’s first dedicated
golf putting range. It is deeply disheartening that the Watershed Management Authority and the Planning
Department have failed to recognise the project’s public benefits, and instead obstructed it with unwritten
rules to avoid their own workload. This unjust rejection, driven by self-interest, exposes the glaring double
standards and irrationality in your approval process.

II. Unique Value of the Project and Broad Public Recognition: A Charitable Recreational Space Away from
Residential Areas, Addressing Industry and Community Gaps

Site Advantages and Strong Public Support

Amid the Government’s large-scale land resumption for housing development, the Sai Kung DD216 site is
far from residential areas, ensuring no noise or environmental disruption to nearby residents. It is
strategically located—away from urban chaos yet close to transport hubs—allowing easy access for
ambulances and fire engines in case of emergencies. The site is also within walking distance of a nearby bus
stop; we will encourage visitors to use public transport, reducing pollution from private vehicles while
allowing them to enjoy a walk in the countryside. Such land suitable for recreational development is now
scarce.

Since we cleared and levelled the DD216 site, unauthorised intrusions have dropped significantly, camping
waste has been eradicated, and debris flowing into the watershed has decreased by 90%, effectively
improving the ecological environment. The entire site will be paved with highly permeable ecological soil,
enabling rapid rainwater infiltration and minimising surface runoff. Even during heavy rain, only clean
rainwater will flow into the watershed—vastly different from the previous polluted water mixed with
garbage and faeces. It is absurd that the Watershed Management Authority ignores decades of accumulated
garbage in the area, yet uses a vague reference to “Watershed Regulation 10 to arbitrarily suppress a project
that benefits both society and the environment.

Irrefutable Evidence of Double Standards: Unauthorised Projects Approved, Charitable Projects Suppressed

The Shak Kok Mei Tennis Court, also located within the watershed, has an overcapacity septic system and
excavation depth of 1.5 metres—posing far greater potential pollution risks to the watershed than our
project—yet it was approved without issue. In contrast, our low-intensity putting range with rigorous
supporting measures has been rejected on trumped-up charges.

Even after multiple farmers submitted countless EIA and soil and water conservation reports proving no
negative impact on the watershed, the Watershed Management Authority continues to invoke an “unwritten
Rule 10” and dismiss our applications with the vague claim of “affecting the watershed”. For over a decade,
all applications for the same site have faced this treatment, demonstrating the existence of a hidden rule
targeting public applications—a tool for abuse of power.

IV. Formal Demands and Follow-Up Actions
Disclose verification records of excavation depth, vegetation impact, and watershed assessments for all

“green belt to recreational use” projects approved in the past 10 years; compare these with the approval
criteria applied to our project to ensure consistent law enforcement.
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Require the Watershed Management Authority to publicly disclose the specific reasons for blocking our
project and all previous applications for the same site, including detailed legal provisions, scientific data,
and on-site verification reports cited to support the claim of “affecting the watershed”. It must also explain
why it has neglected watershed management for decades—allowing garbage to pile up without
intervention—and only conducted symbolic cleaning after our complaints.

Require the Watershed Management Authority to provide core evidence and data to substantiate its claim
that our project “affects the watershed”, for review by professional environmental organisations and the
public to assess the rationality of its decision-making.

Require a reconsideration of the unreasonable rejection and a fresh review of our application for converting
the Sai Kung DD216 green belt to recreational use, with a written response to the inconsistencies in the
approval process.

We hope the Drainage Basin Office and the relevant government departments will review this application
with a sincere and responsible attitude, and stop treating it with perfunctory indifference. The project we
have applied for is not, as you claim, one that would damage the environment or local ecology.

To be frank, over the past ten to twenty years the DD216 water catchment has never had any formal
maintenance or servicing of its sluice gates. In contrast, in recent years local farmers, having reached the end
of their patience, have gradually levelled and cleared plots, and there has been a noticeable reduction in
flooding and litter in the area. The root of the present problem is, in fact, the long-term lack of clearance and
maintenance by your catchment office.

If you insist on handling this application unfairly, I will have no choice but to seek assistance from the
public and the relevant authorities to uphold what is right. Matters must be decided on their merits; in
today’s society we can no longer tolerate protectionism, opaque decision-making, or the suppression of
applications such as ours that seek to promote recreation and well-being for Hong Kong residents.

We are not illegal builders, nor are we submitting false information or concealing ulterior motives. We
genuinely intend to create Hong Kong’s first dedicated golf putting training facility. If you need to discuss
this in person with our coaching team, we can arrange a meeting at any time.

Attention Planning Department, Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

Sincerely
Applicant for review: Marshall Douglas Paul

Contact: ||| G

Date: 01/05/2026
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[See attachment "Extracted Minutes in Chinese.pdf"] [See attachment "Extracted Minutes.pdf''] [See
attachment "Letter - A SK-TMT 84.pdf"] [See attachment "RNTPC Paper in Chinese.pdf"]





